
 

CITY OF EXCELSIOR 
Hennepin County, Minnesota 

 
MINUTES 

 

City Council Work Session 
 

Monday, August 6, 2012 
 
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
 

Mayor Ruehl called the meeting to order at 6:04 p.m.   
 
Councilmembers present: Caron (arrived at 6:06 p.m.), Fulkerson, Miller, 

Olson (arrived at 6:06 p.m.) and Mayor Ruehl 
 

Also Present:   City Manager Luger, Public Works 
Superintendent Wisdorf, Finance Officer 
Tumberg, City Engineer Dawley (arrived at 6:15 

p.m.) and City Clerk Johnson 
 

2. Agenda Approval 
 

Miller moved, Fulkerson seconded, to approve the agenda as presented.  

Motion carried 3/0. 
 

3. Hourly Restrictions for Construction Activities 
 
 The Council tabled this item until Councilmember Caron was in attendance. 

 
4. Possible Uses for Tax Increment Financing 

 
 Luger said that staff needs to know if the Council is interested in exploring 

the option of using Tax Increment Financing (TIF) that could be generated 
from the hotel for public improvements. Possible uses for TIF include storm 
water improvements, improving the streetscape, upsizing the water main, 

and burying electrical lines.   
 

 Fulkerson asked if the developer has requested TIF.  Luger said no.  She 
stated that the developer stated that he does not need TIF for the project, 
but thought that the City may wish to capture TIF dollars for City 

improvements.  Fulkerson said that she does not like utilizing TIF. 
 

 Miller said the Council did talk about making storm water improvements in 
conjunction with the hotel project.   

 

 Mayor Ruehl asked does the City determine whether TIF is used or does the 
developer?  Luger said it can be either.  In this instance, the developer is not 

interested in TIF.   
 
 Mayor Ruehl said that under the City’s TIF policy there are so many 

restrictions that it wouldn’t be worth it to a developer to open up all of their 
financials for such a small amount.  Luger said if the developer wanted TIF,  

 



 
Minutes 
City Council Work Session 

August 6, 2012 
Page 2 

 
4. Possible Uses for Tax Increment Financing – (Continued) 

 
the City’s policy would need to be revised.  If the City requests TIF, the 
developer does not need to open their financial records to the City.   

 
 Caron said in a discussion she had with the City Attorney, the City Attorney 

said the developer may not qualify for TIF at this point because it might be 
difficult to meet the “but for” test.  She doesn’t have the confidence that this 
project will be as successful as other projects.  She said that there are things 

that the City can require of the developer with the Planned Unit Development 
(PUD) process, which are intended to cover some of the improvements being 

discussed.     
 
 Mayor Ruehl said that the City can use TIF to make improvements that would 

be too much for the developer to do without the use of TIF.  It’s also more 
difficult to require a developer to make offsite improvements.   

 
 Luger said that City staff had met with the Minnehaha Creek Watershed 

District (MCWD) to discuss the hotel and the City’s storm water system.  She 

noted that the City may not have all the easements in place for the City’s 
current storm water system.  The MCWD said with the topography of Water 

Street only small improvements could be made to the City’s storm water 
system.     

 

Mayor Ruehl said that if the hotel and theater properties can handle their 
storm water on site, the City may end up directing its storm water down 

another street.   
 
 Miller asked if TIF can be used to build a restroom and refuse facility at the 

Port of Excelsior.  Luger said no, those are not allowable expenditures for TIF 
dollars.   

 
 Miller said that the City Council has also talked about using TIF for improving 

the intersection, storm water, etc.  

 
 Mayor Ruehl asked if the City can use TIF dollars to reroute the storm water 

pipes.  Dawley said he didn’t think TIF dollars could be used for that unless 
the City has a storm water program in place to recoup dollars from 

developers.  
 
 Miller asked if the City has a storm water pipe down Water Street.  Dawley 

said yes, but the pipe is too small and would need to be upsized before 
additional storm water is directed into it.     

 
The Council and staff discussed the City’s storm water system and where the 
pipe ties in and what would need to be done with the storm water pipes in 

the future depending on what work is being accomplished. 
 

  
 



 
Minutes 
City Council Work Session 

August 6, 2012 
Page 3 

 
4. Possible Uses for Tax Increment Financing – (Continued) 

 
 Miller said if the City can use TIF to process the storm water and help the 

City meet future requirements, why not use TIF to accomplish that.  Olson 

agreed. 
 

Luger said if the Council is interested in exploring TIF in conjunction with the 
hotel project staff will need to contact the City’s financial consultant.   

 

 Mayor Ruehl said that the City will have a large expense at some point to do 
the storm water improvements, so the City should look into whether TIF can 

be used to fund the improvements.   
 
 Miller said he would like staff to do more research on whether TIF can be 

used for a restroom and refuse facility at the Port of Excelsior.     
 

 Caron said she would like to understand how the TIF laws have changed and 
research what risk there would be to the taxpayers if the City utilizes TIF for 
this project.  Maybe the City should also have a legal analysis done on this.     

 
 Olson said he agrees it is important to look at the risk.  He said wouldn’t this 

be the opportunity to work on a promenade and entrance to Lake 
Minnetonka? If there is going to be a gorgeous hotel going up, it would be 
good to look at enhancing the area.  This could be looked into even if it isn’t 

tied into TIF.  It is in the City’s best interest to have something designed. 
 

 The Council directed staff to meet with the financial consultant, but if there is 
a cost to have the financial consultant look into this, staff was directed to 
secure a proposal from the financial consultant for the Council’s 

consideration.       
 

3. Hourly Restrictions for Construction Activities 
 

Caron said that she thinks the City’s construction activities are too generous.  

During the week, the hours are 7:30 a.m. to 9:30 p.m. and 9:00 a.m. to 
9:00 p.m. on the weekend.  When a construction project is going on, 

whether it is a City project or not, allowing construction that many hours 
during the day really interferes with resident’s time.  It is also difficult for 

families during the fall when kids are trying to study for tests, go to bed 
earlier for school the next day, etc.  She doesn’t have as much objection to 
the starting time as she does the quitting time.     

 
Mayor Ruehl asked how late the construction work went on the City’s street 

project.  Wisdorf said the latest they worked was 8:30 p.m. or 9:00 p.m.   
 
Mayor Ruehl asked if the City has received a lot of complaints.  Caron said 

she has an issue with the times.   
 

 
 



 
Minutes 
City Council Work Session 

August 6, 2012 
Page 4 

 
3. Hourly Restrictions for Construction Activities – (Continued) 

 
Mayor Ruehl suggested that staff research what other cities have for 
construction hours. 

 
Wisdorf said that most construction workers don’t want to work late in the 

fall because it gets dark earlier and it affects safety. 
 
5. Configuration of Five Corner Intersection in Conjunction with 

Metropolitan Council Forcemain Project 
 

Dawley introduced Jupe Hale, Transportation Senior Project Manager, WSB &  
Associates, Inc.  He noted that Hale is nationally known for his work on 
roundabouts.  He said that Hale has been involved with a number of 

roundabouts throughout the metro area.   
 

Hale explained what some of the issues and obstacles would be with a 
roundabout for the five corner intersection.  He said it would be difficult to 
get a response from MnDOT or Hennepin County without a plan for them to 

look at.  Once there is a plan he believes that MnDOT and Hennepin County 
would be receptive to a roundabout as long as it can be demonstrated that it 

functionally works.   
 
Dawley said that MnDOT and the County will also have input on the funding 

that will be used.  He said that MnDOT and the County will probably look 
more favorable at the project if they do not have to fund the work.  MnDOT 

and the County will also look at known safety issues, pedestrian flow, and 
documents regarding accidents.   
 

Hale said that there is a significant grade change at the approach, but it can 
be managed.  When designing a roundabout they look at site lines and traffic 

flow.  Traffic needs to be able to see within the circle and adjacent approach.  
 
Fulkerson said this is a high pedestrian area, which concerns her.  Hale said 

he was involved in the installation of a roundabout next to a community pool 
where there is a lot of children crossing.  He said roundabouts are typically 

safer because cars are going slower and the pedestrian only needs to look for 
traffic from one direction.   

 
Miller said through his experience he believes roundabouts are safer.  He 
asked if there are any safety statistics to say roundabouts are or not safer.  

Hale said there are studies, but nothing specific. 
 

Olson said this is a chaotic intersection so anything that can be done will 
probably make it safer.  Hale said the benefit from a pedestrian standpoint, is 
that the traffic is channelized.  He sees that as a benefit for this location.   

 
Fulkerson asked what kind of space the roundabout would take up and how 

would this effect the intersection during construction.  Hale showed on a map 
where the roundabout would be located.  He noted that the location can  



 
Minutes 
City Council Work Session 

August 6, 2012 
Page 5 

 
 

5. Configuration of Five Corner Intersection in Conjunction with 
Metropolitan Council Forcemain Project – (Continued) 
 

move.  He noted that some of the corner properties may lose a small portion 
of their property.   

 
Caron asked if the circle could be made smaller.  Hale said it needs to be 
sized to accommodate larger vehicles.   

 
Miller said once the hotel and grocery store is operational, there will be 

substantially more trips into the City and this intersection will get busier.  He  
would really like to have an expert look at this and tell the City whether a 
roundabout is possible and what the benefits are.   

 
Mayor Ruehl said that this may significantly impact the post office property.  

There may also be impacts for the sidewalks on Mill Street to Excelsior 
Boulevard, plus there is a steep slope coming up the hill.  These issues are 
going to be challenging.  The intent is to look at this in concert with the Met 

Council improvements.  He asked if the Met Council is willing to contribute 
what they would have put toward the intersection.  Dawley said based on 

current practice, Met Council is typically interested in putting money to 
replace what is there now.  Dawley said it would be worth having a 
discussion with the Met Council regarding this.   

 
Caron said she can’t tell from the drawing whether there will be a major 

impact to any of the properties.  Hale said that if the roundabout location is 
moved slightly toward Veteran’s Memorial Park it would limit the 
encroachment on the post office property.   

 
Caron said this intersection is really chaotic and it’s really hard to negotiate.  

There are a lot of people who don’t understand how it functions.  The City 
should look at improvements for this intersection in conjunction with the Met 
Council project.  Miller said he also wants a better solution. 

 
Luger said the only point for tonight’s discussion was for the Council to get 

more information.  Staff will look to see if there are other options and place 
this back on a future work session. 

 
Olson said he is very supportive of the idea and he’s thrilled that the City had 
a national expert in this field to discuss this with the Council.   

 
6. First Street Alley 

 
Luger said that last October, Jeff Mark of 236 Lake Street contacted staff 
about the “drop off” at the alley off of First Street.  Mr. Mark believed that 

the grade was drastically altered from the original grade during the street 
project which created the drop off.  Staff looked into the situation and 

concluded that any adjustments made to the alley would be at the cost of 
the City since the work was completed in accordance to the City’s  



 
Minutes 
City Council Work Session 

August 6, 2012 
Page 6 

 
 

6. First Street Alley – (Continued) 
 
specifications.  If the Council is interested in exploring options for this area, 

staff will secure quotes in conjunction with the Third Street Fire Lane 
project.   

 
The Council requested that staff explore options for this area and secure 
quotes for the work in conjunction with the Third Street Fire Lane project. 

 
7. Other 

 
 None 
 

8. Adjournment 
 

Olson moved, Fulkerson seconded, to adjourn the meeting at 6:58 p.m.  
Motion carried 5/0. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 
Cheri Johnson 

City Clerk 
 

 
 


